
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 6 General Information Package (Planning and Construction) 
(Rev. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

GENERAL INFORMATION PACKAGE

Section I. TYPE OF ASSISTANCE REQUESTED LGTS
(State Only)

PLANNING      CONSTRUCTION

Estimated Amount of Financial Assistance Requested:  $

Project Title:

Section II. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Water System Number:

Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number:  

Applicant (Entity) Name:

Street Address: City: 

State:  Zip+4 Code:

Mailing Address: City: 

State: Zip+4 Code:

Congressional District(s): 

State Senate District(s):  

State Assembly District(s):  

County: Federal Tax Identification Number:

(MANDATORY)

Authorized Representative Name, Title:  

Phone Number:  (          ) Email Address:  

(MANDATORY)

Primary Contact Person Name:

Phone Number: (           ) Email Address:  
(OPTIONAL)

Project Engineer and License Number:

Phone Number: (           ) Email Address:  

(OPTIONAL)

Environmental Contact Person Name:

Phone Number: (           ) Email Address:  

(MANDATORY)

Local Counsel Name:  

Phone Number: (           ) Email Address:  
(OPTIONAL)

Davis-Bacon Contact Person Name:

Phone Number: (           ) Email Address:  
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(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

Section III. PROJECT INFORMATION AND PROPOSED SCHEDULES (All fields mandatory) LGTS
(State Only)

1. Project Description:  (Enter a brief description of the problem and project)

2. Is this project related to a compliance order or a violation? Yes    No    

If yes, Explain: 

3. Attach a copy of the system’s water supply permit, along with any active enforcement orders
(label as Attachment G1)

4. Current year estimated population served by the water system:

Current population of the area benefitting from the project:

Briefly describe how the population was determined: 

5. Total Number of Service Connections:

Residential Service Connections:

Commercial/Industrial Service Connections:

Other Service Connections:

Briefly describe how the number of service connections was determined:

6. Estimated Application Schedule:
Estimated or Actual Date

a) General Information Package ______________________

b) Technical Package ______________________

c) Environmental Package ______________________

d) Financial Security Package ______________________
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(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

7. Consultation with Other Agencies

Please list other Federal and State agencies that have been involved in this project (e.g. planning, CEQA/NEPA 
consultation, funding, etc.), their contact information if known, and estimated dates for resolution of any issues.

8. Partnering Agencies

Please list all other agencies that have an interest in this project.  Provide contact information if known.

Section IV. MANAGERIAL INFORMATION (All fields mandatory)
LGTS

(State Only)

1. Classification of Water System

Community 
Non-transient non-community 
Transient non-community 
Not currently classified as a public water system – Please explain:

2. Indicate the Ownership of the Water System (check all that apply):

Please include the ownership documentation (See instructions for further information)
(label as Attachment G2)

Public Ownership Private Ownership

Municipality
County Agency
Special District
State Agency
K-12 Public School
Other: _____________

Corporation
Limited Liability Company
Partnership 
Sole Proprietorship 
Non-profit organization 
Other: _________________

If the water system is privately-owned, indicate the name and title of the individual with authority to
engage the water system in a DWSRF financing agreement.
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3. If the Water System is a Municipality, is the Water System a Charter City? Yes   No    

4. If the Water System is a Corporation, Limited Liability Company, or Partnership, complete the
following:

A. California Secretary of State Entity Number: _____________________________

B. Status with California Secretary of State: Active       Suspended      

Forfeited   Dissolved 

5. Is the Water System regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)? Yes   No 

If yes, the Water System must obtain CPUC approval. Attach a list and a description of all matter(s) relating 
to your Water System that are currently pending before the CPUC (label as Attachment G3).

6. List the names, titles and duties of key officers. If there are more than 3, attach an organization chart
providing this information (label as Attachment G4).

7. Is there any litigation pending relative to the operation of the water system or the proposed project?

Yes   No

If yes, attach a description of the litigation and the potential costs (label as Attachment G5).

8. Is the Water System leasing land or major water system facilities? Yes   No

If yes, describe the terms of the lease or attach a copy of the lease agreement (label as Attachment G6).  
(NOTE:  If the lease is critical to the location or operation of the proposed project facilities, the term of the 
lease must be equal to or greater than the loan repayment period.)
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(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

9. Please include a general map of the service area/boundaries (label  as Attachment G7):

10. [For Construction Projects Only] Does the Water System have a contract with a private firm or
another agency for the operation of the facility to be financed?   Yes   No

If yes, provide the name of the firm or agency and term (in years) of the agreement and attach a copy of the
agreement (label as Attachment G8)

CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that I am authorized to submit this application; the information 
provided in this application is true and correct; the documentation has been duly authorized by the governing 
body of the applicant; and the entity possesses the legal authority to apply for the financing and enter into a 
financing agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board and to finance and construct the proposed 
facilities.

Name of Authorized Representative: ____________________________    Title:  _________________________

Signature of Authorized Representative:  _________________________   Date:  ________________________

ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST

Check the box next to each item attached to your application.

G1 – Water Supply Permit and Enforcement Orders

G2 –  Ownership Documentation (if applicable)

G3 – CPUC Documentation (if applicable)

G4 – Organization Chart

G5 – Pending Litigation (if applicable)

G6 – Lease Agreement (if applicable)

G7 – Service Area Map

G8 – Operating Agreement (if applicable)
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FOR STATE USE ONLY
1. Project Manager:

2. DWSRF Project #:

3. Does the name on the water supply permit match the Secretary of State website (http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/) and
demonstrate an active status? (Does not apply to publicly-owned water systems)

YES   NO    N/A (if No, notify the District Office/LPA)

4. Confirm that the FAAST Pin Number is linked to LGTS? YES

5. Application documents uploaded into LGTS? YES

6. Spending forecast in LGTS - Spending forecast is set as: Manual   Automatic
If manual, is it updated? YES N/A      

7. Project Category: A B C D E  F 

NOTES/COMMENTS (Attach additional sheets as needed): 

SECTION I

SECTION II

SECTION III

SECTION IV

Attach median household income determination and any related documents.

Comments: 

_______________________________________       ___________________________________
Project Manager Signature Date

_______________________________________      ___________________________________
Senior Engineer Signature Date   
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Attachment G2 













 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment G4 



C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
FR

ES
N

O
D

EP
A

R
TM

EN
T 

O
F 

PU
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S 
A

N
D

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

(1
)

45
10

St
ev

en
 W

hi
te

D
es

ig
n

D
iv

is
io

n

M
oh

am
m

ad
 A

lim
i

*D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 &
 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

*T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
*Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
is

t. 
Ad

m
in

.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
D

iv
is

io
n

St
ev

en
 D

ei
s

*P
ub

lic
 p

ro
je

ct
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

& 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

*M
at

er
ia

ls
 T

es
tin

g
*S

ur
ve

yi
ng

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
&

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
D

iv
is

io
n

M
an

ag
er

VA
C

A
N

T 

*R
oa

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
*T

ra
ffi

c 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

*T
ra

ffi
c 

In
ve

st
.

Fi
na

nc
ia

l &
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

Le
m

ue
l A

sp
re

c

*A
cc

ou
nt

s 
Pa

ya
bl

e/
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e
*P

ay
ro

ll
*D

ep
ar

tm
en

t H
R

R
es

ou
rc

es
D

iv
is

io
n

M
an

ag
er

90
15

A
m

in
a 

Fl
or

es
-B

ec
ke

r

*S
pe

ci
al

 D
is

t. 
Ad

m
in

.
*P

ar
ks

*S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 O
ps

.

C
om

pu
te

r
D

at
a

Sy
st

em
s 

D
iv

is
io

n
M

an
ag

er

Th
an

ap
ha

t 
‘P

at
’

Sr
is

uk
w

at
an

a

*C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

G
IS

*D
ep

ar
tm

en
t G

ra
ph

ic
s

*D
ep

ar
tm

en
t P

er
m

it 
Tr

ac
ki

ng

C
om

m
un

ity
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
iv

is
io

n
M

an
ag

er

G
le

nn
 A

lle
n

*C
D

BG
*H

O
M

E 
Pr

og
ra

m
*F

ilm
 C

om
m

is
si

on
*T

ou
ris

m

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Se

rv
ic

es
&

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

D
iv

is
io

n 
M

an
ag

er

W
ill

ia
m

 K
et

tle
r

*B
ui

ld
in

g 
Pe

rm
its

 &
 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
*L

an
d 

U
se

 &
 

Su
bd

iv
is

io
n

*C
ou

nt
y 

C
ap

ita
l 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

*G
ra

di
ng

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
*C

od
e 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

Se
cr

et
ar

y-
C

 (1
)

45
10

Li
nd

a 
B

ro
si

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
ub

lic
 

W
or

ks
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

(1
)

43
60

02
00

B
er

na
rd

 J
im

en
ez

W
at

er
 &

 N
at

ur
al

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 D
iv

is
io

n 
M

an
ag

er

G
le

nn
 A

lle
n

*S
G

M
A 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
*S

M
AR

A 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

*W
illi

am
so

n 
Ac

t 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
ub

lic
 

W
or

ks
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

(1
)

45
10

Jo
hn

 T
ho

m
ps

on

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Te

ch
. (

1)
45

10

Ju
an

a 
C

am
ac

ho

8/
9/

20
19



 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment G7 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning) 
(Rev. 9/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

FINANCIAL SECURITY PACKAGE (PLANNING)
Applicant (Entity) Name:

Project Title:

Contact Person: Phone: (        )

1. Amount of Assistance Requested:  $

2. Planning has a term of 5 years.

3. Other Project Funding Sources

Name and Type of Funding Sources Amount Applied Approved Received
$

$
$

4. Current Year Median Household Income:  $

5a.  Current Year Estimated 
Population Served:

5b. Check box if less than 50% of 
residences are permanently occupied

6. Active Service Connections Not Applicable

Connection Type Number of Connections
Current Monthly Service

Charge
Average Monthly Billing

(Last 12 months)

Residential $ $

Commercial $ $

Industrial $ $

Other $ $

TOTAL $ $

Rate increase effective date for projected monthly service charges:

7. Projected Annual Operations and Maintenance Costs,
Including amortized replacement costs (upon completion):

$ 

8. Discussion of Material Events, Material Obligation Conditions, and Any Debt Limit
Identify any current prior material events such as bankruptcy, defaults, litigation, grand jury findings, unscheduled draws on reserve 
funds, substitution of insurers or their failure to perform, unscheduled draws on credit enhancements, actions taken in anticipation of 
filing Chapter 9, rating changes, relevant conditions in material obligations, and any local debt limit.



Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)
(Rev. 09/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

9. Water Rate Study

Has a water rate study been conducted for the water system?               Yes           No 

If yes, please submit a complete copy of the Water Rate Study.  

ATTACHMENTS (Check the box next to each item attached to your application.)

F1 – AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (3 years)

F5a – AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE (required for publicly owned 
entities)

F5b – CORPORATE RESOLUTION TO APPLY, BORROW AND TO GRANT 
SECURITY (required for corporations)

F6 – RATE ADOPTION RESOLUTION

F10 – NEW SPECIAL TAX, ASSESSMENT DISTRICT, OR SERVICE CHARGE
PROJECTIONS (if applicable)

F11 – RELEVANT SERVICE, MANAGEMENT, CONSOLIDATION, OPERATING, OR 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (if applicable)

F12 – FUTURE CAPITAL NEEDS (if applicable)

The following attachments are not required for Small DAC/SDAC applying for 100% grant 
or principal forgiveness funding.  If a loan determination applies, applicant must submit 
all attachments. 

F2- BUDGETS OR PROJECTIONS (2 years)

F7 – PLEDGED REVENUES AND FUND(S) RESOLUTION

F8 – RELATED DEBT OR NO DEBT LETTER     
(see Application Information & Instructions)

F9 – DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

State Use Only

DWSRF Project #

Project Manager

Date Received



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment F1 



 
 
   

 

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
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(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the 
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2016, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2016, the changes 
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 
2017, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California 
January 31, 2017



  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments 26,710$      
Receivables

Accounts 21,979
Interest 91

Total Current Assets 48,780       

Capital assets, net -            

Total Assets 48,780       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 8,763
Due to primary government 3,296

Total Liabilities 12,059       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 36,721       

Total Net Position 36,721$      

 

 
 



  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 96,229$      

Total Operating Revenues 96,229       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 1,092
Professional services 39,677
Specialized departmental expenses 898
General and administrative 4,610
Repairs and maintenance 4,633
Utilities 45,221

Total Operating Expenses 96,131       

Operating Income (Loss) 98             

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 680

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 680            

Change in Net Position 778            

Net Position, Beginning of Year 35,943       

Net Position, End of Year 36,721$      

 
  



  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users 96,535$     
Cash paid to suppliers (90,673)     

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,862        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments 672           

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 672           

Net change in cash and investments 6,534        

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 20,176       

Cash and Investments, End of Year 26,710$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 98$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables 306           
Accounts payable 5,102        
Due to primary government 356           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,862$       
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COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not 
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of 
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Reporting Entity:  County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise 
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential 
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The 
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of 
Fresno, to the residents of the District. 

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus  an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define 
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is 
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the 
County of  
(CAFR). 

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1 
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes.  

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and 
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the 
District on a reimbursement basis. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:   

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The District has elected 
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for 
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of 
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered 
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



 
COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 

COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

7 

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):  

the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred.  Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses. 

Cash and Investments:  The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is 
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State 

of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.  

State statutes and the County of Fresno s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer 
to invest in U.S. Government 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State 

 Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No. 

 held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of 
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received 
from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 

Credit quality ratings are not available for the  investments as all cash is invested as 
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have 
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2016.   

The 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of 
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.   

Accounts Receivable:  - unts receivable was applied for 
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized 
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The 
write-   Any 
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District 
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2016. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is 
not available.  Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on 
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable.  Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Building and Improvements:   25 Years 
       

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government:  Certain costs are incurred by the District 
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal 
period. These costs are reported as 
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $8,763 and $3,296, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2016, are related to certain contract services and payments for 
utility fees. 

Net Position:  Net position represents the residual interest in the District
liabilities are deducted.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section 
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in 
three broad components: 

 Net investment in capital assets  Amount consists of capital assets, including 
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted  Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature. 

 Unrestricted  Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used. 

Property Taxes:  The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which 
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on 
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District. 

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property 
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County. 
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1. 
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due 
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 39, and the second is generally 
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 39. Secured property taxes 
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due 
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Property Taxes (continued):  All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority 
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State 
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as 
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a 
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value. 

Teeter Plan  County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan) 
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes 
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes 
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on 
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including 
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability 
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is 
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid 
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan. 

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2016, the 
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial 
statements: 

GASB Statement No. 72  Fair Value Measurement and Application.  The provisions of this 
statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2015.

GASB Statement No. 73  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  The provisions of this statement are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015, except those provisions that address 
employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not 
within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68, which are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 76  The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State 
and Local Governments.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 79  Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs 18, 19, 23-26 and 40, which are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):  

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 

GASB Statement No. 74  Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than 
Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 75  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
other than Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 77  Tax Abatement Disclosures.  The requirements of this statement 
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 78  Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Plans.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 80  Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 81  Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 82  Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance 

most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are 
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the 
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018, early adoption is 
encouraged.  

Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated 
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements.  Management has determined that no events require 
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These subsequent events have been 
evaluated through January 31, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
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NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 26,710$      

Total cash and investments 26,710$      

 
Summary of Deposits: 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following: 

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer 26,710$      

Total cash and investments 26,710$      

 
See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to 
risks and fair value measurements. 

NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,115,384$  -$        -$            1,115,384$  

Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384    -         -              1,115,384   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384)   -         -              (1,115,384)  

    Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384)   -         -              (1,115,384)  

Capital assets, net -$              -$        -$            -$              
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, was $0. 
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NOTE 4  RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or 
through participation in the -Insurance Program. Refer to the County 
of Fresno CAFR for additional information. 

NOTE 5  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring 
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal 
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
CSA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
CSA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs, that we consider to be significant deficiencies:  2016-001 and
2016-002.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Findings

The CSA’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2017
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Finding 2016-001 Financial Reporting

Criteria:   

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to 
ensure the following:  1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the 
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and 
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a 
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management 
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

Condition:    

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing procedures 
in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner.  We 
noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the 
information before it was provided to the external auditors.  Based upon our audit we noted there 
were several post-close adjustments missed by the County.  Adjustments made by management 
considered to be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net 
assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable, 
deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.  
Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account 
balances we proposed audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain 
accounts in accordance with GAAP.  All adjustments that were proposed during the current year 
audit were presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 

Cause of Condition:  

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting 
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management 
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances.  

Effect of Condition:   

Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the 
CSAs and Districts.  In addition material adjustments were proposed and posted to the financial 
statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Recommendation:   

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a 
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that sufficient 
resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing procedures and 
preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also recommend that the 
Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to 
the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy 
and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the Department invest in 
training and cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Finding 2016-001 Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:   

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be modified 
to ensure timely closing of general ledger.  Checklists will be created to ensure all information 
needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is available and 
complete.  To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide training to employees 
with financial reporting responsibilities. 

Finding 2016-002  Depreciation Calculations 

Criteria

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to 
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial 
reporting.     

Condition 

During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense.  Upon further 
research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due to data entry 
errors among other things.   

Cause of Condition 

partment of Public 
Works and Planning  

Effect of Condition 

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would ultimately 
affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.   

Recommendation 

We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry of 
capital asset information into its system.  We further recommend the Department go back through 
its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.   

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan 

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Prior to fiscal year end, staff will 
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system to 
ensure depreciation calculations are accurate. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Finding 2015-001 Financial Reporting 

Criteria:   

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to 
ensure the following:  1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the 
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and 
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a 
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management 
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

Condition:    

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have year-end closing procedures in place 
which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner.  We noted 
that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the information 
before it was provided to the external auditors.  Based upon our audit we noted there were several 
post-close adjustments missed by the County.  Adjustments made by management considered to 
be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior 
period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue, 
capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.  Also, during our 
testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed 
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in 
accordance with GAAP.  All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were 
presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 

Cause of Condition:  

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting 
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management 
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances in 
accordance with GAAP.  

Effect of Condition:   

Untimely closing and lack of account balances presented in accordance with GAAP resulted in final 

proposed and po  

Recommendation:   

We recommend that the County implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a 
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner and that sufficient 

-end closing procedures 
and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also recommend that the 
CSA strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to the fiscal 
year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy and 
completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the CSA invest in training and 
cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Finding 2015-001 Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:  

and Planning will review its year-end policies and procedures to ensure timely closing of the general 
ledger and to ensure all transactions are properly captured and recorded. 

Current Year Status 

Not implemented, see current year finding number 2016-001. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Supervisors 
County of Fresno 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type 
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the 
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

1



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2017, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2017, the changes 
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 
2018, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG 
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California 
January 31, 2018 
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See Independent  Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments 29,310$     
Receivables

Accounts 19,500
Interest 103

Total Current Assets 48,913       

Capital assets, net -            

Total Assets 48,913       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 12,025
Due to primary government 2,913

Total Liabilities 14,938       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 33,975       

Total Net Position 33,975$     

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



See Independent  Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 102,435$   

Total Operating Revenues 102,435     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 990
Professional services 37,656
General and administrative 3,815
Repairs and maintenance 11,385
Utilities 51,426

Total Operating Expenses 105,272     

Operating Income (Loss) (2,837)        

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 91

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 91              

Change in Net Position (2,746)        

Net Position, Beginning of Year 36,721       

Net Position, End of Year 33,975$     

 
   



See Independent  Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users 104,914$   
Cash paid to suppliers (102,393)   

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,521        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments 79             

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 79             

Net change in cash and investments 2,600        

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 26,710      

Cash and Investments, End of Year 29,310$    

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (2,837)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 2,479        
Accounts payable 3,262        
Due to primary government (383)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,521$      

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not 
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of 
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Reporting Entity:  County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise 
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential 
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The 
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of 
Fresno, to the residents of the District. 
 
The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus  an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define 
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is 
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the 

ensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). 
 
The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1 
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes.  
 
The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and 
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the 
District on a reimbursement basis. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:   
 
The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for 
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of 
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. 
 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered 
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):   
 

the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred.  Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses. 
 
Cash and Investments:  The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is 
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State 

of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.  
 
State statutes and the County of Fresno s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer 
to invest in U.S. Government 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State 

 No. 
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment 
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of 
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received 
from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
 
Credit quality ratings are not available for the  investments as all cash is invested as 
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have 
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2017.   
 

 purposes are considered to 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of 
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.   
 
Accounts Receivable:  - unts receivable was applied for 
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized 
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The 
write-   Any 
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District 
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2017. 
 
 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is 
not available.  Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on 
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable.  Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 
 Building and improvements:   25 Years 

       
Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government:  Certain costs are incurred by the District 
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal 
period. These costs are reported as 
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $12,025 and $2,913, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2017, are related to certain contract services and payments for 
utility fees. 
 
Net Position:  Net position represents the residual interest in the District
liabilities are deducted.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section 
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in 
three broad components: 
 

Net investment in capital assets  Amount consists of capital assets, including 
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
Restricted  Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature. 
Unrestricted  Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition 

 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used. 
 
Property Taxes:  The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which 
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on 
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District. 
 
County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property 
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County. 
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1. 
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due 
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally 
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes 
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due 
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. 
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(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Property Taxes (continued):  All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority 
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State 
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as 
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a 
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value. 
 
Teeter Plan  County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan) 
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes 
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes 
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on 
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including 
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability 
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is 
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid 
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2017, the 
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial 
statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 74  Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than 
Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 77  Tax Abatement Disclosures.  The requirements of this statement 
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 
 
GASB Statement No. 78  Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Plans.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80  Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 81  Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. 
 
Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 
 
GASB Statement No. 75  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
other than Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued): 

GASB Statement No. 82  Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance 

most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are 
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the 
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.  

GASB Statement No. 84  Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.  

GASB Statement No. 85  Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  

GASB Statement No. 86  Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  

GASB Statement No. 87  Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 

Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated 
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements.  Management has determined that no events require 
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These subsequent events have been 
evaluated through January , 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 

NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 29,310$   

Total cash and investments 29,310$   
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(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11 

 
NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Summary of Deposits: 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 
 

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer 29,310$     

Total cash and investments 29,310$     

 
See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to 
risks and fair value measurements. 
 
 
NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,115,384$ -$        -$             1,115,384$ 

Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384   -          -              1,115,384   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384) -          -              (1,115,384) 

    Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384) -          -              (1,115,384) 

Capital assets, net -$              -$        -$             -$              
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, was $0. 
 
 
NOTE 4  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or 
through participation in the -Insurance Program. Refer to the County 
of Fresno CAFR for additional information. 
 
 
NOTE 5  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring 
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal 
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Supervisors 
County of Fresno 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
CSA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
CSA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, that we consider to be a significant deficiency:  2017-001. 

12



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Finding

The CSA’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 BROWN ARMSTRONG 
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 

Bakersfield, California 
January 31, 2018 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting  
 
Criteria:   
 

implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following:  1) 
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of 
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial 
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient 
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review 
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 
 
Condition:    
 
During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing 
procedures.  The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of 
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors.  The results of our 
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14 
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed 
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.  
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to 
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  
 
Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial 
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient 
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending 
account balances.  
 
Effect of Condition:   
 
Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the 
CSAs and Districts.  In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the 
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure 
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that 
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing 
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also 
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that 
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general 
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we 
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those 
employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting (continued) 
 
Managements Response:   
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be 
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector.  Furthermore, Management will closely review all 
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before 
providing them to the external auditor.  If resources are available, the Department will provide 
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2016-001  Financial Reporting  
 
Criteria:   
 
The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process 
to ensure the following:  1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure 
the proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is 
closed and related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner 
allowing for a more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to 
sufficient management review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
 
Condition:    
 
During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing 
procedures in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely 
manner.  We noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient 
review of the information before it was provided to the external auditors.  Based upon our 
audit we noted there were several post-close adjustments missed by the County.  
Adjustments made by management considered to be material to the financial statement were 
related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable, 
accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and 
revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.  Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff 
procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed audit adjustments 
to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in accordance with GAAP.  
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to 
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  
 
Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial 
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient 
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending 
account balances.  
 
Effect of Condition:   
 
Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of 
the CSAs and Districts.  In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the 
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure 
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that 
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing 
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also 
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that 
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general 
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we 
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those 
employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2016-001  Financial Reporting (continued) 
 
Managements Response:   
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be 
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger.  Checklists will be created to ensure all 
information needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is 
available and complete.  To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide 
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Not implemented, see Finding 2017-001. 
 
 
Finding 2016-002  Depreciation Calculations  
 
Criteria 
 
In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to 
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial 
reporting.     
 
Condition 
 
During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense.  Upon 
further research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due 
to data entry errors among other things.   
 
Cause of Condition 
 

Public Works and Planning  
 
Effect of Condition 
 
Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would 
ultimately affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.   
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry 
of capital asset information into its system.  We further recommend the Department go back 
through its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.   
 
Management Response and Corrective Action Plan 
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Prior to fiscal year end, staff will 
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system 
to ensure depreciation calculations are accurate. 
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Finding 2016-002  Depreciation Calculations (continued) 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Implemented. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments 25,261$      
Receivables

Accounts 3,036
Interest 124

Total Current Assets 28,421       

Capital assets, net -            

Total Assets 28,421       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 15,665
Due to primary government 3,101

Total Liabilities 18,766       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 9,655         

Total Net Position 9,655$       
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 89,099$      

Total Operating Revenues 89,099       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 1,087
Professional services 40,682
General and administrative 3,619
Repairs and maintenance 2,686
Utilities 65,342

Total Operating Expenses 113,416      

Operating Income (Loss) (24,317)      

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss) (3)              

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (3)              

Change in Net Position (24,320)      

Net Position, Beginning of Year 33,975       

Net Position, End of Year 9,655$       

 
   



   

See Independent Auditor s Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users 105,563$   
Cash paid to suppliers (109,588)    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (4,025)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments (24)           

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (24)           

Net change in cash and investments (4,049)       

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 29,310       

Cash and Investments, End of Year 25,261$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (24,317)$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 16,464       
Accounts payable 3,640        
Due to primary government 188           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (4,025)$     

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not 
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of 
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Reporting Entity:  County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise 
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential 
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The 
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of 
Fresno, to the residents of the District. 
 
The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus  an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define 
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is 
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the 
County of  
(CAFR). 
 
The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1 
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes.  
 
The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and 
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the 
District on a reimbursement basis. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:   
 
The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for 
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of 
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. 
 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered 
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):   
 

the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred.  Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses. 
 
Cash and Investments:  The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is 
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State 

of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.  
 
State statutes and the County of Fresno s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer 
to invest in U.S. Government 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State 

(LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No. 
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment 
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of 
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received 
from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
 
Credit quality ratings are not available for the  investments as all cash is invested as 
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have 
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2018.   
 
The 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of 
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.   
 
Accounts Receivable:  - unts receivable was applied for 
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized 
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The 
write-   Any 
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District 
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2018. 
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COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is 
not available.  Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on 
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable.  Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 
 Building and improvements:   25 Years 

       
Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government:  Certain costs are incurred by the District 
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal 
period. These costs are reported as 
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $15,665 and $3,101, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2018, are related to certain contract services and payments for 
utility fees. 
 
Net Position:  Net position represents the residual interest in the District
liabilities are deducted.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section 
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in 
three broad components: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets  Amount consists of capital assets, including 
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted  Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature. 

 Unrestricted  Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition 
 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used. 
 
Property Taxes:  The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which 
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on 
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District. 
 
County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property 
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County. 
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1. 
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due 
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally 
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes 
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due 
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Property Taxes (continued):  All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority 
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State 
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as 
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a 
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value. 
 
Teeter Plan  County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan) 
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes 
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes 
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on 
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including 
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability 
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is 
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid 
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2018, the 
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial 
statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 75  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
other than Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 
 
GASB Statement No. 82  Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance 

most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are 
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the 
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. 
 
GASB Statement No. 85  Omnibus 2017.  The provisions of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.   
 
GASB Statement No. 86  Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.   
 
Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 
 
GASB Statement No. 83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.   
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):  
 
GASB Statement No. 84  Fiduciary Activities.  The requirements of this statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.   
 
GASB Statement No. 87  Leases.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.   
 
GASB Statement No. 88  Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings 
and Direct Placements.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018.   
 
GASB Statement No. 89  Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019.   
 
GASB Statement No. 90  Majority Equity Interests- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 
14 and No 61.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018.   
 
Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated 
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements.  Management has determined that no events require 
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These subsequent events have been 
evaluated through January 31, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
 
 
NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 
 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 25,261$      

Total cash and investments 25,261$      

 
Summary of Deposits: 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following: 
 

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer 25,261$      

Total cash and investments 25,261$      

 
See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to 
risks and fair value measurements. 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

11 

 
NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,115,384$  -$        -$            1,115,384$  

Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384   -         -              1,115,384   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384)  -         -              (1,115,384)  

    Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384)  -         -              (1,115,384)  

Capital assets, net -$              -$        -$            -$              
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $0. 
 
 
NOTE 4  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or 
through participation in the -Insurance Program. Refer to the County 
of Fresno CAFR for additional information. 
 
 
NOTE 5  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring 
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal 
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 
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There were no current year findings required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting  
 
Criteria:   
 

implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following:  1) 
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of 
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial 
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient 
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review 
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 
 
Condition:    
 
During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing 
procedures.  The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of 
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors.  The results of our 
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14 
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed 
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.  
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to 
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  
 
Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial 
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient 
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending 
account balances.  
 
Effect of Condition:   
 
Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the 
CSAs and Districts.  In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the 
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure 
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that 
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing 
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also 
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that 
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general 
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we 
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those 
employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting (continued) 
 
Managements Response:   
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be 
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector.  Furthermore, Management will closely review all 
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before 
providing them to the external auditor.  If resources are available, the Department will provide 
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
 
Current Year Status: 
 
Implemented. 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning) 
(Rev. 9/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

FINANCIAL SECURITY PACKAGE (PLANNING)
Applicant (Entity) Name:

Project Title:

Contact Person: Phone: (        )

1. Amount of Assistance Requested:  $

2. Planning has a term of 5 years.

3. Other Project Funding Sources

Name and Type of Funding Sources Amount Applied Approved Received
$

$
$

4. Current Year Median Household Income:  $

5a.  Current Year Estimated 
Population Served:

5b. Check box if less than 50% of 
residences are permanently occupied

6. Active Service Connections Not Applicable

Connection Type Number of Connections
Current Monthly Service

Charge
Average Monthly Billing

(Last 12 months)

Residential $ $

Commercial $ $

Industrial $ $

Other $ $

TOTAL $ $

Rate increase effective date for projected monthly service charges:

7. Projected Annual Operations and Maintenance Costs,
Including amortized replacement costs (upon completion):

$ 

8. Discussion of Material Events, Material Obligation Conditions, and Any Debt Limit
Identify any current prior material events such as bankruptcy, defaults, litigation, grand jury findings, unscheduled draws on reserve 
funds, substitution of insurers or their failure to perform, unscheduled draws on credit enhancements, actions taken in anticipation of 
filing Chapter 9, rating changes, relevant conditions in material obligations, and any local debt limit.



Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)
(Rev. 09/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

9. Water Rate Study

Has a water rate study been conducted for the water system?               Yes           No 

If yes, please submit a complete copy of the Water Rate Study.  

ATTACHMENTS (Check the box next to each item attached to your application.)

F1 – AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (3 years)

F5a – AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE (required for publicly owned 
entities)

F5b – CORPORATE RESOLUTION TO APPLY, BORROW AND TO GRANT 
SECURITY (required for corporations)

F6 – RATE ADOPTION RESOLUTION

F10 – NEW SPECIAL TAX, ASSESSMENT DISTRICT, OR SERVICE CHARGE
PROJECTIONS (if applicable)

F11 – RELEVANT SERVICE, MANAGEMENT, CONSOLIDATION, OPERATING, OR 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (if applicable)

F12 – FUTURE CAPITAL NEEDS (if applicable)

The following attachments are not required for Small DAC/SDAC applying for 100% grant 
or principal forgiveness funding.  If a loan determination applies, applicant must submit 
all attachments. 

F2- BUDGETS OR PROJECTIONS (2 years)

F7 – PLEDGED REVENUES AND FUND(S) RESOLUTION

F8 – RELATED DEBT OR NO DEBT LETTER     
(see Application Information & Instructions)

F9 – DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

State Use Only

DWSRF Project #

Project Manager

Date Received



Financial Assistance Application Page 7 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)
(Rev. 09/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

Attachment F8

RELATED DEBT

The following related debts are senior to the proposed DWSRF financing:
 

Name of 
Lender and                       
Title of Debt 
or Loan 
Number

Debt Security 
or Source of 
Revenue

Debt Service                     
Coverage 
Requirement Rating

Original 
Debt 
Amount 

Current              
Balance 

Payment 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate

Debt Term  
&           
Maturity 
Date 

$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /

$ $ $ /

The following related debts are on parity to the proposed Financing Agreement:

Name of 
Lender and          
Title of Debt 
or Loan 
Number

Debt Security 
or Source of 
Revenue

Debt Service                     
Coverage 
Requirement Rating

Original 
Debt 
Amount 

Current              
Balance 

Payment 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate

Debt Term 
& Maturity 
Date 

$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /

The following related debts are subordinate to the proposed Financing Agreement:

Name of 
Lender and                     
Title of Debt 
or Loan 
Number

Debt Security 
or Source of 
Revenue

Debt Service                     
Coverage 
Requirement Rating

Original 
Debt 
Amount 

Current              
Balance 

Payment 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

Debt Term 
&                 
Maturity 
Date 

$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /

Attach copies of the debt documents associated with the above debts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the 
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2016, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2016, the changes 
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 
2017, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California 
January 31, 2017



  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments 26,710$      
Receivables

Accounts 21,979
Interest 91

Total Current Assets 48,780       

Capital assets, net -            

Total Assets 48,780       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 8,763
Due to primary government 3,296

Total Liabilities 12,059       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 36,721       

Total Net Position 36,721$      

 

 
 



  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 96,229$      

Total Operating Revenues 96,229       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 1,092
Professional services 39,677
Specialized departmental expenses 898
General and administrative 4,610
Repairs and maintenance 4,633
Utilities 45,221

Total Operating Expenses 96,131       

Operating Income (Loss) 98             

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 680

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 680            

Change in Net Position 778            

Net Position, Beginning of Year 35,943       

Net Position, End of Year 36,721$      

 
  



  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users 96,535$     
Cash paid to suppliers (90,673)     

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,862        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments 672           

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 672           

Net change in cash and investments 6,534        

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 20,176       

Cash and Investments, End of Year 26,710$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 98$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables 306           
Accounts payable 5,102        
Due to primary government 356           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,862$       

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not 
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of 
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Reporting Entity:  County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise 
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential 
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The 
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of 
Fresno, to the residents of the District. 

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus  an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define 
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is 
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the 
County of  
(CAFR). 

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1 
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes.  

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and 
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the 
District on a reimbursement basis. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:   

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 
1989, generally are followed in proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The District has elected 
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for 
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of 
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered 
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



 
COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 

COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):  

the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred.  Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses. 

Cash and Investments:  The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is 
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State 

of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.  

State statutes and the County of Fresno s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer 
to invest in U.S. Government 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State 

 Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No. 

 held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of 
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received 
from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 

Credit quality ratings are not available for the  investments as all cash is invested as 
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have 
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2016.   

The 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of 
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.   

Accounts Receivable:  - unts receivable was applied for 
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized 
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The 
write-   Any 
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District 
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2016. 



 
COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 

COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is 
not available.  Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on 
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable.  Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Building and Improvements:   25 Years 
       

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government:  Certain costs are incurred by the District 
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal 
period. These costs are reported as 
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $8,763 and $3,296, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2016, are related to certain contract services and payments for 
utility fees. 

Net Position:  Net position represents the residual interest in the District
liabilities are deducted.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section 
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in 
three broad components: 

 Net investment in capital assets  Amount consists of capital assets, including 
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted  Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature. 

 Unrestricted  Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used. 

Property Taxes:  The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which 
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on 
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District. 

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property 
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County. 
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1. 
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due 
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 39, and the second is generally 
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 39. Secured property taxes 
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due 
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. 
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COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Property Taxes (continued):  All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority 
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State 
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as 
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a 
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value. 

Teeter Plan  County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan) 
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes 
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes 
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on 
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including 
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability 
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is 
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid 
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan. 

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2016, the 
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial 
statements: 

GASB Statement No. 72  Fair Value Measurement and Application.  The provisions of this 
statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2015.

GASB Statement No. 73  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  The provisions of this statement are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015, except those provisions that address 
employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not 
within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68, which are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 76  The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State 
and Local Governments.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 79  Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs 18, 19, 23-26 and 40, which are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 
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COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):  

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 

GASB Statement No. 74  Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than 
Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 75  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
other than Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 77  Tax Abatement Disclosures.  The requirements of this statement 
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 78  Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Plans.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015. 

GASB Statement No. 80  Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 81  Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. 

GASB Statement No. 82  Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance 

most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are 
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the 
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018, early adoption is 
encouraged.  

Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated 
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements.  Management has determined that no events require 
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These subsequent events have been 
evaluated through January 31, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
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NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 26,710$      

Total cash and investments 26,710$      

 
Summary of Deposits: 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following: 

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer 26,710$      

Total cash and investments 26,710$      

 
See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to 
risks and fair value measurements. 

NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,115,384$  -$        -$            1,115,384$  

Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384    -         -              1,115,384   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384)   -         -              (1,115,384)  

    Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384)   -         -              (1,115,384)  

Capital assets, net -$              -$        -$            -$              
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, was $0. 
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COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
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NOTE 4  RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or 
through participation in the -Insurance Program. Refer to the County 
of Fresno CAFR for additional information. 

NOTE 5  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring 
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal 
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
CSA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
CSA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs, that we consider to be significant deficiencies:  2016-001 and
2016-002.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Findings

The CSA’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2017
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Finding 2016-001 Financial Reporting

Criteria:   

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to 
ensure the following:  1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the 
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and 
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a 
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management 
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

Condition:    

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing procedures 
in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner.  We 
noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the 
information before it was provided to the external auditors.  Based upon our audit we noted there 
were several post-close adjustments missed by the County.  Adjustments made by management 
considered to be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net 
assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable, 
deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.  
Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account 
balances we proposed audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain 
accounts in accordance with GAAP.  All adjustments that were proposed during the current year 
audit were presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 

Cause of Condition:  

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting 
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management 
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances.  

Effect of Condition:   

Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the 
CSAs and Districts.  In addition material adjustments were proposed and posted to the financial 
statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Recommendation:   

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a 
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that sufficient 
resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing procedures and 
preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also recommend that the 
Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to 
the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy 
and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the Department invest in 
training and cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Finding 2016-001 Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:   

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be modified 
to ensure timely closing of general ledger.  Checklists will be created to ensure all information 
needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is available and 
complete.  To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide training to employees 
with financial reporting responsibilities. 

Finding 2016-002  Depreciation Calculations 

Criteria

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to 
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial 
reporting.     

Condition 

During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense.  Upon further 
research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due to data entry 
errors among other things.   

Cause of Condition 

partment of Public 
Works and Planning  

Effect of Condition 

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would ultimately 
affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.   

Recommendation 

We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry of 
capital asset information into its system.  We further recommend the Department go back through 
its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.   

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan 

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Prior to fiscal year end, staff will 
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system to 
ensure depreciation calculations are accurate. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Finding 2015-001 Financial Reporting 

Criteria:   

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to 
ensure the following:  1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the 
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and 
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a 
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management 
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

Condition:    

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have year-end closing procedures in place 
which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner.  We noted 
that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the information 
before it was provided to the external auditors.  Based upon our audit we noted there were several 
post-close adjustments missed by the County.  Adjustments made by management considered to 
be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior 
period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue, 
capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.  Also, during our 
testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed 
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in 
accordance with GAAP.  All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were 
presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 

Cause of Condition:  

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting 
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management 
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances in 
accordance with GAAP.  

Effect of Condition:   

Untimely closing and lack of account balances presented in accordance with GAAP resulted in final 

proposed and po  

Recommendation:   

We recommend that the County implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a 
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner and that sufficient 

-end closing procedures 
and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also recommend that the 
CSA strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to the fiscal 
year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy and 
completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the CSA invest in training and 
cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Finding 2015-001 Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:  

and Planning will review its year-end policies and procedures to ensure timely closing of the general 
ledger and to ensure all transactions are properly captured and recorded. 

Current Year Status 

Not implemented, see current year finding number 2016-001. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Supervisors 
County of Fresno 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type 
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the 
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2017, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2017, the changes 
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 
2018, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG 
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California 
January 31, 2018 
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See Independent  Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments 29,310$     
Receivables

Accounts 19,500
Interest 103

Total Current Assets 48,913       

Capital assets, net -            

Total Assets 48,913       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 12,025
Due to primary government 2,913

Total Liabilities 14,938       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 33,975       

Total Net Position 33,975$     

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



See Independent  Report and the accompanying notes. 

4 

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 102,435$   

Total Operating Revenues 102,435     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 990
Professional services 37,656
General and administrative 3,815
Repairs and maintenance 11,385
Utilities 51,426

Total Operating Expenses 105,272     

Operating Income (Loss) (2,837)        

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 91

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 91              

Change in Net Position (2,746)        

Net Position, Beginning of Year 36,721       

Net Position, End of Year 33,975$     

 
   



See Independent  Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users 104,914$   
Cash paid to suppliers (102,393)   

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,521        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments 79             

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 79             

Net change in cash and investments 2,600        

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 26,710      

Cash and Investments, End of Year 29,310$    

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (2,837)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 2,479        
Accounts payable 3,262        
Due to primary government (383)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,521$      

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not 
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of 
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Reporting Entity:  County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise 
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential 
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The 
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of 
Fresno, to the residents of the District. 
 
The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus  an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define 
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is 
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the 

ensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). 
 
The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1 
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes.  
 
The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and 
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the 
District on a reimbursement basis. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:   
 
The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for 
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of 
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. 
 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered 
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):   
 

the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred.  Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses. 
 
Cash and Investments:  The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is 
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State 

of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.  
 
State statutes and the County of Fresno s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer 
to invest in U.S. Government 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State 

 No. 
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment 
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of 
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received 
from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
 
Credit quality ratings are not available for the  investments as all cash is invested as 
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have 
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2017.   
 

 purposes are considered to 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of 
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.   
 
Accounts Receivable:  - unts receivable was applied for 
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized 
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The 
write-   Any 
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District 
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2017. 
 
 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is 
not available.  Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on 
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable.  Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 
 Building and improvements:   25 Years 

       
Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government:  Certain costs are incurred by the District 
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal 
period. These costs are reported as 
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $12,025 and $2,913, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2017, are related to certain contract services and payments for 
utility fees. 
 
Net Position:  Net position represents the residual interest in the District
liabilities are deducted.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section 
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in 
three broad components: 
 

Net investment in capital assets  Amount consists of capital assets, including 
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
Restricted  Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature. 
Unrestricted  Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition 

 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used. 
 
Property Taxes:  The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which 
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on 
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District. 
 
County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property 
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County. 
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1. 
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due 
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally 
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes 
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due 
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. 
 
 
 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Property Taxes (continued):  All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority 
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State 
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as 
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a 
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value. 
 
Teeter Plan  County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan) 
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes 
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes 
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on 
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including 
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability 
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is 
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid 
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2017, the 
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial 
statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 74  Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than 
Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 77  Tax Abatement Disclosures.  The requirements of this statement 
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. 
 
GASB Statement No. 78  Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Plans.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80  Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 81  Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. 
 
Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 
 
GASB Statement No. 75  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
other than Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 
 



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued): 

GASB Statement No. 82  Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance 

most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are 
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the 
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. 

GASB Statement No. 83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.  

GASB Statement No. 84  Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.  

GASB Statement No. 85  Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  

GASB Statement No. 86  Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  

GASB Statement No. 87  Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 

Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated 
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements.  Management has determined that no events require 
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These subsequent events have been 
evaluated through January , 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 

NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 29,310$   

Total cash and investments 29,310$   



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Summary of Deposits: 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 
 

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer 29,310$     

Total cash and investments 29,310$     

 
See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to 
risks and fair value measurements. 
 
 
NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,115,384$ -$        -$             1,115,384$ 

Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384   -          -              1,115,384   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384) -          -              (1,115,384) 

    Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384) -          -              (1,115,384) 

Capital assets, net -$              -$        -$             -$              
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, was $0. 
 
 
NOTE 4  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or 
through participation in the -Insurance Program. Refer to the County 
of Fresno CAFR for additional information. 
 
 
NOTE 5  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring 
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal 
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Supervisors 
County of Fresno 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
CSA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
CSA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, that we consider to be a significant deficiency:  2017-001. 
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Finding

The CSA’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 BROWN ARMSTRONG 
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 

Bakersfield, California 
January 31, 2018 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting  
 
Criteria:   
 

implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following:  1) 
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of 
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial 
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient 
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review 
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 
 
Condition:    
 
During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing 
procedures.  The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of 
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors.  The results of our 
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14 
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed 
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.  
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to 
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  
 
Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial 
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient 
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending 
account balances.  
 
Effect of Condition:   
 
Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the 
CSAs and Districts.  In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the 
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure 
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that 
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing 
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also 
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that 
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general 
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we 
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those 
employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting (continued) 
 
Managements Response:   
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be 
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector.  Furthermore, Management will closely review all 
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before 
providing them to the external auditor.  If resources are available, the Department will provide 
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2016-001  Financial Reporting  
 
Criteria:   
 
The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process 
to ensure the following:  1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure 
the proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is 
closed and related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner 
allowing for a more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to 
sufficient management review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
 
Condition:    
 
During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing 
procedures in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely 
manner.  We noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient 
review of the information before it was provided to the external auditors.  Based upon our 
audit we noted there were several post-close adjustments missed by the County.  
Adjustments made by management considered to be material to the financial statement were 
related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable, 
accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and 
revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.  Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff 
procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed audit adjustments 
to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in accordance with GAAP.  
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to 
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  
 
Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial 
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient 
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending 
account balances.  
 
Effect of Condition:   
 
Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of 
the CSAs and Districts.  In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the 
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure 
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that 
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing 
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also 
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that 
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general 
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we 
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those 
employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2016-001  Financial Reporting (continued) 
 
Managements Response:   
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be 
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger.  Checklists will be created to ensure all 
information needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is 
available and complete.  To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide 
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Not implemented, see Finding 2017-001. 
 
 
Finding 2016-002  Depreciation Calculations  
 
Criteria 
 
In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to 
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial 
reporting.     
 
Condition 
 
During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense.  Upon 
further research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due 
to data entry errors among other things.   
 
Cause of Condition 
 

Public Works and Planning  
 
Effect of Condition 
 
Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would 
ultimately affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.   
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry 
of capital asset information into its system.  We further recommend the Department go back 
through its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.   
 
Management Response and Corrective Action Plan 
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Prior to fiscal year end, staff will 
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system 
to ensure depreciation calculations are accurate. 
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Finding 2016-002  Depreciation Calculations (continued) 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Implemented. 
 



 

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2018 

 



   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 Page 
 
 
 
Independent Auditor s Report ......................................................................... 1 
 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 
     Statement of Net Position ............................................................................... 3 
     
     Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ........................... 4 
      
     Statement of Cash Flows ................................................................................ 5 
 
     Notes to Financial Statements ......................................................................... 6 
 
 

 
   Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
   Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
   Government Auditing Standards ........................................................................ 12 
 
Schedule of Findings and Responses ..................................................................... 14 
 
Status of Prior Year Findings ................................................................................ 15 
 
 



Government Auditing Standards



Required Supplementary Information

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards



   

See Independent Auditor s Report and the accompanying notes. 
 
3 

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 
 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and investments 25,261$      
Receivables

Accounts 3,036
Interest 124

Total Current Assets 28,421       

Capital assets, net -            

Total Assets 28,421       

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 15,665
Due to primary government 3,101

Total Liabilities 18,766       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 9,655         

Total Net Position 9,655$       

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

See Independent Auditor s Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 89,099$      

Total Operating Revenues 89,099       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 1,087
Professional services 40,682
General and administrative 3,619
Repairs and maintenance 2,686
Utilities 65,342

Total Operating Expenses 113,416      

Operating Income (Loss) (24,317)      

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss) (3)              

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (3)              

Change in Net Position (24,320)      

Net Position, Beginning of Year 33,975       

Net Position, End of Year 9,655$       

 
   



   

See Independent Auditor s Report and the accompanying notes. 
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA

(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users 105,563$   
Cash paid to suppliers (109,588)    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (4,025)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments (24)           

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (24)           

Net change in cash and investments (4,049)       

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 29,310       

Cash and Investments, End of Year 25,261$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (24,317)$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 16,464       
Accounts payable 3,640        
Due to primary government 188           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (4,025)$     
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not 
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of 
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Reporting Entity:  County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise 
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential 
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The 
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of 
Fresno, to the residents of the District. 
 
The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus  an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define 
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is 
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the 
County of  
(CAFR). 
 
The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1 
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes.  
 
The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and 
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the 
District on a reimbursement basis. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:   
 
The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for 
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of 
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. 
 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered 
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):   
 

the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the liability is incurred.  Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those 
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are 
essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses. 
 
Cash and Investments:  The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is 
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State 

of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.  
 
State statutes and the County of Fresno s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer 
to invest in U.S. Government 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State 

(LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No. 
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment 
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of 
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received 
from the securities custodian.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
 
Credit quality ratings are not available for the  investments as all cash is invested as 
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer. 
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have 
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2018.   
 
The 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of 
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.   
 
Accounts Receivable:  - unts receivable was applied for 
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized 
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The 
write-   Any 
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District 
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2018. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is 
not available.  Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on 
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as 
applicable.  Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 
 Building and improvements:   25 Years 

       
Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government:  Certain costs are incurred by the District 
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal 
period. These costs are reported as 
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $15,665 and $3,101, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2018, are related to certain contract services and payments for 
utility fees. 
 
Net Position:  Net position represents the residual interest in the District
liabilities are deducted.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section 
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in 
three broad components: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets  Amount consists of capital assets, including 
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted  Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature. 

 Unrestricted  Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition 
 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are 
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used. 
 
Property Taxes:  The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which 
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on 
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District. 
 
County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property 
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County. 
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1. 
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due 
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally 
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes 
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due 
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Property Taxes (continued):  All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority 
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State 
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as 
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a 
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value. 
 
Teeter Plan  County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan) 
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes 
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes 
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on 
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including 
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability 
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is 
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid 
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update:  During the year ending June 30, 2018, the 
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial 
statements: 
 
GASB Statement No. 75  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
other than Pension Plans.  The provisions of this statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 
 
GASB Statement No. 82  Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance 

most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are 
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the 
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. 
 
GASB Statement No. 85  Omnibus 2017.  The provisions of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.   
 
GASB Statement No. 86  Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.   
 
Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows: 
 
GASB Statement No. 83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  The requirements of this 
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.   
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):  
 
GASB Statement No. 84  Fiduciary Activities.  The requirements of this statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.   
 
GASB Statement No. 87  Leases.  The requirements of this statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.   
 
GASB Statement No. 88  Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings 
and Direct Placements.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018.   
 
GASB Statement No. 89  Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019.   
 
GASB Statement No. 90  Majority Equity Interests- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 
14 and No 61.  The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018.   
 
Subsequent Events:  In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated 
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements.  Management has determined that no events require 
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards.  These subsequent events have been 
evaluated through January 31, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
 
 
NOTE 2  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 
 

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 25,261$      

Total cash and investments 25,261$      

 
Summary of Deposits: 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following: 
 

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer 25,261$      

Total cash and investments 25,261$      

 
See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to 
risks and fair value measurements. 
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NOTE 3  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 1,115,384$  -$        -$            1,115,384$  

Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384   -         -              1,115,384   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384)  -         -              (1,115,384)  

    Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384)  -         -              (1,115,384)  

Capital assets, net -$              -$        -$            -$              
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $0. 
 
 
NOTE 4  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or 
through participation in the -Insurance Program. Refer to the County 
of Fresno CAFR for additional information. 
 
 
NOTE 5  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring 
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal 
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 
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There were no current year findings required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting  
 
Criteria:   
 

implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following:  1) 
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of 
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial 
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient 
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review 
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 
 
Condition:    
 
During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing 
procedures.  The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of 
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors.  The results of our 
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14 
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed 
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.  
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to 
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements. 
 
Cause of Condition:  
 
Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial 
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient 
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending 
account balances.  
 
Effect of Condition:   
 
Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the 
CSAs and Districts.  In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the 
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure 
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that 
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing 
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules.  We also 
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that 
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general 
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we 
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those 
employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
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Finding 2017-001  Financial Reporting (continued) 
 
Managements Response:   
 
Management concurs with the finding and recommendation.  Year-end procedures will be 
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector.  Furthermore, Management will closely review all 
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before 
providing them to the external auditor.  If resources are available, the Department will provide 
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities. 
 
Current Year Status: 
 
Implemented. 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 8 Technical Package (Planning)
(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

TECHNICAL PACKAGE (PLANNING)
Applicant (Entity) Name:

Project Title:

Contact Person: Phone: (         )

I. Technical Information

1. Describe the water system and its facilities. Include details relating to source, storage, treatment, and distribution
system. Attach a schematic/map of the system which includes existing facilities (label as Attachment T1).

2. Describe the problem being addressed by the planning project and attach supporting documents of the problem
(label as Attachment T2).



Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 8 Technical Package (Planning)
(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

3. Has an analysis of alternatives been completed?  Make sure the analysis includes consolidation as an alternative.

YES (Attach a copy of the analysis and label as Attachment T3)

NO

4. Attach a Scope of the Project (label as Attachment T4).

5. Attach a signed Certification for Compliance with Water Metering (label as Attachment T5a).

6. Attach a schematic/map of the proposed facilities if available (label as Attachment T6).

7. Attach an Engineering Report if available (label as Attachment T7).

8. Attach a copy of the applicable professional engineering services contract if available (label as Attachment T8).

9. Proposed eligible start date (see instructions): ________________

10. Estimated project expenditures incurred prior to executing a financing agreement, which the entity intends to
claim for reimbursement: $________________

II. WATER RIGHTS, WATER CONSERVATION AND URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT

WATER RIGHTS

1. Describe the nature of the water rights applicable to your water source and attach water rights documentation
related to water source (label as Attachment T9).

WATER DIVERSION REPORTING

2. Are you a water diverter in compliance with Water Code Section 5103?

YES NO

For information see:  http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/diversion_use/

WATER CONSERVATION

3. If you are a retail water supplier, are you in compliance with the State Water Board’s emergency drought
regulations at Section 863-865 of title 23 of the California Code of Regulations?

YES NO

4. Are you an urban water supplier as defined in Water Code Section 10608.12?

YES NO

Urban water suppliers must submit one of the following: 

Water Conservation Program (label as Attachment T10)

Signed the Memorandum of Understanding regarding urban water conservation in California (label as
Attachment T11)

Urban Water Management Plan per Water Code Section 10653 (label as Attachment T12).
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ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST

Check the box next to each item attached to your application.

T1 –Schematic/Map of System and Facilities

T2 – Supporting Documents of the Problem

T3 – Analysis of Alternatives (if applicable)

T4 – Scope of the Project (see attached outline)

T5a – Certification for Compliance with Water Metering Form

T6 – Schematic/Map of the Proposed Facilities (if available)

T7 – Engineering Report (if available)

T8 – Contract for Professional Engineering Services (if available)

T9 – Water Rights Documentation (if applicable)

T10 – Water Conservation Program (if applicable)

T11 – Memorandum of Understanding (if applicable)

T12 – Urban Water Management Plan (if applicable)
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Financial Assistance Application Page 8 of 8 Technical Package (Planning)
(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

Attachment T5a

CERTIFICATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH WATER METERING
REQUIREMENTS FOR FUNDING APPLICATIONS

 
Funding Agency 
Name: State Water Resources Control Board

Funding Program 
Name: Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Applicant (Agency 
Name): 

Please check one of the boxes below and sign and date this form.

As the authorized representative for the applicant agency, I certify under penalty of perjury 
that the agency is not an urban water supplier, as that term is understood pursuant to the 
provisions of section 529.5 of the Water Code.

As the authorized representative for the applicant agency, I certify under penalty of perjury 
that the applicant agency has fully complied with the provisions of Division 1, Chapter 8, Article 
3.5 of the California Water Code (sections 525 through 529.7 inclusive) and that the ordinances, 
rules, or regulations submitted with this certification as listed below have been duly adopted and 
are in effect as of this date.

I understand that the Funding Agency will rely on this signed certification in order to 
approve funding and that false and/or inaccurate representations in this Certification 
Statement may result in loss of all funds awarded to the applicant for its project.  
Additionally, for the aforementioned reasons, the Funding Agency may withhold 
disbursement of project funds, and/or pursue any other applicable legal remedy.

Name of Authorized Representative 
(Please print)

Title

Signature of Authorized Representative Date
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County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project 

SCOPE OF THE PROJECT

FRESNO COUNTY  CSA 39AB 

PROJECT NO. [   ] 

Task No. Task Description 

1 

 
Pre-Design and Engineering Report 

 Prepare an engineering report consistent with Construction Funding 
Application guidelines including the following sections: 

o Water System Information 
o Problem Description 
o Alternative Solution Analysis  
o Selected Construction Project 
o Proposed Schedule 
o Attachments to the Engineering Report 

 

2 

 
Governance Support 

 Prepare required LAFCo documents to modify CSA 39AB boundaries to 
encompass new connections.  

 Prepare Municipal Service Review 
 Coordinate with LAFCo for processing of CSA boundary modification.  

 

3 

 
Water Rate Adjustment 

 Complete a water rate study for the community with recommendations of 
new water rates.  

 Conduct Proposition 218 election to adopt water rates.  
 

4 

 
Right of Way Investigation 

 Evaluate and determine if additional right-of-way is necessary for the 
improvement identified in Task 1.  

 Prepare appropriate documentation to acquire right-of-way or easements, 
as needed.  

o Note: actual right-of-way acquisition costs will be included in the 
construction funding assistance application.  

 



County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project 

5 

 
Construction Document Preparation 

 Conduct topographic survey of proposed project limits, as needed based 
on selected alternative.  

 Perform geotechnical investigation for proposed project.  
 Prepare draft construction documents for the selected alternative including 

plans, specifications and 
Cost.  

o Level of completion of draft construction documents will depending 
on selected alternative and funding remaining. It is anticipated 
90% construction documents can be accommodated. 

o Construction documents will be finalized with construction funding 
to capture new requirements or code changes.  

 

6 

 
Environmental Document Preparation 

 Review project description and CEQA/NEPA guidelines for possible 
exemptions.  

 Prepare CEQA/NEPA documents for selected alternative in compliance 
with CEQA/NEPA requirements for SWRCB SRF funded projects. 

o Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration is the assumed level of 
CEQA/NEAP documents required.  

 This task will include required CEQA/NEPA studies such as biological and 
cultural resources studies.  

 

7 

 
TMF Assessment 

 Prepare TMF assessment based on selected alternative and SWRCB 
guidelines.  

 Prepare all supporting documentation necessary to fulfill and complete 
requirements outlined in SWRCB TMF Assessment Form for Community 
Water Systems.  

 

8 

 
Grant Administration & Project Support 

 Miscellaneous project costs such as permitting fees and grant 
administration.  

 This task assumes grant term will be approximately 18 months.  
 

9 

 
Project Contingency 

 Accommodate changing project requirements that arise throughout the 
execution of Tasks 1 through 8.  

 
 

  



County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project 

PROJECT BUDGET SHEET

FRESNO COUNTY  CSA 39AB 

PROJECT NO. [   ] 

Line 
Item No. 

Line Item Description Line Item Budget 

1 Pre-Design and Engineering Report $55,000  

2 Governance Support $45,000  

3 Water Rate Adjustment $55,000  

4 Right of Way Investigation $17,000  

5 Construction Document Preparation $145,000  

6 Environmental Document Preparation $65,000  

7 TMF Assessment $30,000  

8 Grant Administration & Project Support $50,000  

9 Project Contingency $38,000 

Total $500,000 

  



County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project 

PROJECT SCHEDULING FOR PLANNING

FRESNO COUNTY  CSA 39AB 

PROJECT NO. [   ] 

Line Item 
No. 

Line Item Description 
Expected Time of Completion 

from the Date of Execution of a 
Funding Agreement [ 

1 Pre-Design and Engineering Report 3 Months 

2 Governance Support 4 Months 

3 Water Rate Adjustment 9 Months 

4 Right of Way Investigation 6 Months 

5 Construction Document Preparation 9 Months 

6 Environmental Document Preparation 6 Months 

7 TMF Assessment 3 Months 

8 Grant Administration & Project Support 18 Months 

9 Project Contingency 18 Months 

 

A pictorial representation of the schedule is provided below to illustrate activities which will 
overlap.   

Task/Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
Pre-Design and 
Engineering Report 

                  

Governance Support                   

Water Rate 
Adjustment 

                  

Right of Way 
Investigation 

                  

Construction 
Document Preparation 

                  

Environmental 
Document Preparation 

                  

TMF Assessment 
                  

Grant Administration & 
Project Support 

                  

Project Contingency 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

ENVIRONMENTAL PACKAGE (PLANNING)

Applicant (Entity) Name:

Project Title: Project Number:

Contact Person: Phone:

I.  California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Status

NOTE:  

(label as )

label as 

).

ion



II. General Information

Attachment E2

Yes  No

(e.g., wildlife refuge, deer wintering range) 



Attachment E3

Yes    No

Attachment Checklist


